
 

 
Addenbrooke House   Ironmasters Way    Telford   TF3 4NT 

 

Continued… 

BUSINESS AND FINANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

Date Wednesday, 8 September 2021 Time 6.00 pm 

Venue Telford Room, Addenbrooke House, Ironmasters Way, Telford, TF3 4NT 

 

Enquiries Regarding this Agenda 

Democratic Services Kieran Robinson 01952 382061 

Media Enquiries Corporate Communications 01952 382406 

 

Committee 
Membership: 

Councillors E J Carter, N A M England, J E Lavery, A Lawrence, 
S J Reynolds (Chair), K S Sahota and C F Smith, Co-optees 
R Williams 

 

AGENDA 
Page 

1.   Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 

3 - 14 

4.   Terms of Reference 15 - 18 
 To approve the Committee’s Terms of Reference for the municipal year 

2021 to 2022. 
 

 

5.   Work Programme 2021/22 19 - 22 
 To agree the Committee’s work programme for the municipal year 2021 

to 2022. 
 

 

6.   Commercial Projects Update  
 To receive the presentation of Jon Power (Policy & Development 

Manager).  
 

 

7.   Chair's Update 
 

 

  

Public Document Pack

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

BUSINESS AND FINANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Business and Finance Scrutiny Committee 
held on Wednesday, 13 January 2021 at 6.00 pm by Remote Meeting 

 
 
Present: Councillors E J Carter, N A M England, J E Lavery, A Lawrence, 
S J Reynolds (Chair), K S Sahota and C F Smith.  

Co-optees: C Mason-Morris and R Williams 
 
Also Present: Councillor R C Evans 

 
 
In Attendance:  Ken Clarke (Director: Finance & Human Resources), 
Anthea Lowe (Associate Director: Policy & Governance), and Kieran 
Robinson (Democratic & Scrutiny Services Officer) 
 
 
BFSC17 Declarations of Interest 
 
C Mason-Morris, Co-optee, declared that she was a casual employee of 
Telford & Wrekin Council. 
 
BFSC18 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 9 December 2020 
be confirmed and signed by the Chair. 
 
BFSC19 Financial Monitoring and Mid-Year Budget Review Report 
 
Members received the Councils financial monitoring update and budget 
proposals as set out in the two reports to Cabinet on 7 January 2021. The 
Financial Monitoring update report set out the Council’s position for the year 
with the budget report covering the upcoming year for the revenue budget and 
capital plans over a longer period of three to four years. 
 
The Committee heard that there had been significant pressures on the budget 
for the 2020/21 financial year with additional spending pressures for adult 
social care, provision of PPE for a large number of Council employees, and 
notably reduced revenue from commercial activities (e.g. leisure centres), 
amongst other complications. The Authority had not furloughed any 
employees, however, with employees redeployed to support the Council’s 
work in the community during its response to the pandemic. Additional 
pressures from lost income from business rates and council tax had 
compounded the situation.  
 
There was a £14 million pressure on the service budget with a £5.1 million 
shortfall to business rates and council tax. The Authority had received a £17.2 
million emergency grant from the Government, which had alleviated some of 
the pressures that had arisen because of the pandemic. There was, therefore, 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

a net pressure of £2 million though this was a provisional figure as the Council 
expected further assistance from the Tax Income Guarantee scheme that had 
been announced in the Comprehensive Spending Review. The scheme would 
reimburse 75% of unrecoverable losses from business rates and council tax, 
there were, however, no details on how the scheme would work or a definition 
of unrecoverable. 
 
The projected shortfall of £5.1 million would to some extent be unrecoverable 
and some would be recovered but there would be a time delay. 
 
BFSC20 Service & Financial Planning Proposals 2021/22 - 2023/24 
 
The Chief Financial Officer continued their presentation to the Committee, 
providing Members with information regarding the Council’s budget proposals.  
 
The revenue budget proposals would cover one year, as there had been a 
one-year settlement from the government. There had been significant grant 
cuts over the preceding ten years and a reduction of £0.862m in the total 
grants received from Government next year compared to the current year.. 
The Council had had to make budget savings in those preceding ten years in 
order to maintain a balanced budget. By the end of the 2020/21 year, the 
Authority would have delivered £126.4 million in savings and there was an 
expectation that the coming years would prove to be similar with further 
pressures and savings to be made. Savings thus far had been executed 
through the shrinking of the organisation, with 1600 posts eliminated and 
fewer Council buildings. The Council had sought to protect frontline services, 
instead seeking to make savings from management and back-office functions 
as far as possible. Members were informed that, inverse to grant funding, 
demand for services had increased significantly, most notably in children’s 
safeguarding and adult care.  
 
There was funding of £129 million in 2020/21. The largest part of this was 
funded through council tax (£70.2 million or 54%), this was a significantly 
higher proportion of the net revenue budget than it had been a ten years prior; 
this was as a result of the decreasing levels of grant funding from the 
Government.  
 
The most significant area of expenditure was safeguarding, social care, and 
education and skills, which accounted for £94.3 million or 73% of the budget. 
£33.9 million (26%) followed this on health and wellbeing, commissioning, and 
neighbourhood and enforcement.  
 
Before the proposals, the Authority had the lowest council tax at Band D 
amongst all authorities in the Midlands, almost £200 lower than the average 
for the region. Under the proposals, council tax would be increased by 1.99% 
plus the Government’s 3% for the Adult Social Care Precept for a total 
increase of 4.99%, which would increase revenue by £3.6 million. The 
settlement from the Government was £0.86 million smaller than the previous 
year and Government had assumed that councils with responsibility for Adult 
Social care would raise taxes by the full 4.99% allowed.  

Page 4



 

 

 
The precept had to be ring-fenced for adult social care, it was worth £2.19 
million and would fund the majority of the additional investment required in 
that area. The budget for adult social care would be in excess of £47 million 
for the next financial year, with the increased precept revenue.  
 
The increased tax would be roughly £1.01 per week on the average property 
in the Borough. This would be more significant for some residents than others; 
to mitigate this the Council offered reductions and had a hardship fund for 
those that faced the greatest difficulty. The proposals suggested that the 
hardship fund be doubled. It was noted that even if no other council in the 
Midlands increased its council tax for the year, Telford would still be among 
the lowest in the region.  
 
Key proposals included –  
An extra £0.5 million in both 2021/22 and 2022/23 to support crime and anti-
social behaviour initiatives;  
A package of savings totalling £5.9 million 2021/22 and rising to £7.1 million 
from 2022/23; and  
The use of £0.386 million of balance to ensure a balanced budget for the year, 
though this was not deemed a sustainable solution.  
 
The capital programme proposal had to be considered over a number of 
years, as a result the Authority proposed a Medium Term Capital Programme. 
In total, the programme was budgeted for in excess of £200 million over the 
medium term. The programme included £65 million investment in NuPlace, in 
excess of £40 million for transport and highways, £25.7 million for education 
capital projects, £9.65 million for property investment portfolio, and £4 million 
for climate change initiatives.  
 
The Council faced a number of future of uncertainties, the impact of COVID, 
the absence of a Medium Term Comprehensive Spending Review, and 
delayed changes to the local government finance system.  
 
A discussion followed and the Committee posed a number of questions:  
Business rates and council tax take were down, it was understood why 
business was down, but why council tax? 
This was one of the challenges of the pandemic, with furlough and lost jobs. 
Where people had faced difficulty they had been put in contact with relevant 
contacts for the council tax reduction scheme, hardship fund, and the council 
had also agreed payment plans. There would be issues with cash flow for the 
year.  
 
There were £5.1 million in non-collected rates, what was a realistic proportion 
for future collection? 
The Council was working on this, it was not expected to be as bad as 
originally thought, but it was not possible to put a figure on it at that point.  
 
Did the Council have data for the number of furloughed residents in the 
Borough? 

Page 5



 

 

The officers did have that information available and would provide it for the 
next meeting of the Committee.  
 
Would all employees be returning to office based working post-COVID? 
The Authority was assessing the future appropriateness of working for home 
for all office-based jobs, before the pandemic there had already been a 
number of employees that were exclusively work from home and it was 
possible there would be more in future. The review was being undertaken on 
a job-by-job basis. The Council would not be returning to the previous 
arrangement and would be assessing its accommodation needs. 
 
Councils like Croydon had come close to bankruptcy as a result of investment 
in commercial activities that had not created income, would the Council firmly 
monitor NuPlace’s profitability moving forward? 
Croydon had issued an s114 notice but there were a range of reasons for this. 
NuPlace had been exceptionally successful for the Council and continued to 
provide high quality homes in the private rent sector with long-term tenancy. 
The Council received a net revenue benefit of £1.5 million per year, each 
year, and this was likely to grow with further investment. Demand for the 
homes had been high, with a low void rate, and rent income remained high 
despite the pandemic. The surplus NuPlace generated was used for frontline 
services.  
 
Was the criteria for assistance from the Hardship Fund based on Government 
criteria or set by the Council? Was it forecast to increase assistance due to 
the pandemic and Brexit? 
The Hardship Fund was fully funded by the Council; it was not a national 
scheme. The Council set and implemented criteria. At the last review of the 
scheme, funding had been increased significantly The scheme was set up in 
such a way that if somebody met the criteria the funding would be allocated 
regardless of the amount of allocated funding that remained for the scheme. It 
was forecast that there would be an increased need for assistance.  
 
How did the Council’s council tax revenue as a percentage of net budget 
compare to the rest of the West Midlands? 
Officers did not have this information to hand, but nationally the average was 
60% of net budget funded by council tax. Telford & Wrekin was below this but 
it had a relatively low level of council tax.  
 
Could the Council provide figures for the hardship funding that had been given 
over the preceding three years? 
Officers did not have the data at the meeting but it could be provided at the 
next meeting.  
 
 
Any additional queries ahead of the next meeting were to be submitted to 
Democratic Services. 
 
BFSC21 Chair's Update 
 

Page 6



 

 

The Chair informed the Committee that a letter to the Leader of the Council 
had been drafted to express support for the Local Enterprise Partnership. 
 
The meeting ended at 7.20 pm 

 
Chairman:   

 
Date: 

 
Wednesday, 8 September 2021 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

BUSINESS AND FINANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Business and Finance Scrutiny Committee 
held on Monday, 18 January 2021 at 6.00 pm in Remote Meeting 

 
 
Present: Councillors E J Carter, N A M England, J E Lavery, A Lawrence, 

S J Reynolds (Chair), K S Sahota and C F Smith.  
 

Co-optees: C Mason-Morris and R Williams 
 
Also Present: Councillors R Evans 

 
 
In Attendance:  D Sidaway (Chief Executive), K Clarke (Director: Finance 

& Human Resources) and A Lowe (Associate Director: 
Policy and Governance) 

 
 
Apologies:  
 
None received.   
 
BFSC22 Declarations of Interest 
 
C Mason-Morris, Co-optee, declared an interest as she was a casual 
employee of Telford and Wrekin Council. 
 
BFSC23 Service & Financial Planning Proposals 2021/22 - 2023/24 
 
The Director Finance & HR updated Members on the questions raised at the 
previous meeting and submitted prior to the meeting.  A hard copy document 
had been circulated prior to the meeting which gave details of his answers for 
their information. 
 
Was there an ability to obtain information from HMRC on how many 
people are on furlough in the borough? 
 
The data was dated as at the end of October 2020.  At that point there were 
4,800 people in the borough that were still on furlough which was 5.8 % of the 
workforce.  That figure was lower than anywhere else in the Midlands with the 
West Midlands average being 7.4% and 7.2% being the England average.  
This figure had changed over time.  At the end of July 2020 12,700 people 
were on furlough, at the end of August 2020 8,800 and 6,200 at the end of 
September 2020.  At the peak in July 2020 this was 15% of the workforce and 
this was now currently 5.8%. 
 
 
 

Page 9



 

 

Was is possible to get information on the unemployment position within 
the Borough?  
 
The unemployment rate in 2020 was fairly stable between January and March 
2020 before the pandemic started, with a significant increase in April 2020 
and a slightly smaller increase in May 2020 and then there was a fairly rapid 
increase but then levelled up with some movement.  It was noted that, 
although there has been a decrease in the number of people on furlough, it 
did not seem to have impacted on the unemployment figures.  The most up to 
date figure with regards to unemployment available was November 2020 and 
the rate within Telford and Wrekin was 6.1% with the England average of 
6.4% and for the West Midlands 7.3%.   Although unemployment rates were 
higher these were in line with the comparators elsewhere in the country.    
 
What had happened to people’s pay during the pandemic. 
 
With regards to earnings within Great Britain, there had been a dip in earnings 
between May- July 2020 but this had now come back up to a higher level than 
it was at the start of 2020.  The manufacturing sector earnings were set out in 
the replies tabled at the meeting for the country as a whole, as local figures 
were only published once a year. 
 
What is behind the Borough’s lower figure for furlough and 
unemployment – was it the nature of the companies and industry locally. 
 
Locally there is a higher proportion of manufacturing jobs compared to 
regionally and nationally so this may be a contributing factor. 
 
The budget contained a general contingency of £3.2m, why £3.2m? What 
was the reasoning? 
 
The contingency for the current year was £3.2m.   Next year’s budget had an 
increased level of contingency of £750,000 due to the uncertainty around the 
pandemic bringing the total contingency to £3.95m.  The level had been set at 
around £3m-£3.2m for approximately the last four years.   The outturn position 
was within budget despite the recent pressures and that level of contingency 
had been sufficient to meet any unexpected pressures that may arise during 
the year.  The Council had experience and a reasonable level of confidence to 
manage resources within budget. 
 
Could the Committee have hardship funding figures for previous years, 
including the amounts given and the take up of the funding? 
 
The Council used to have a council tax benefits system fully funded by the 
Government from the start of council tax in around 1990 until the end of 
2012/2013 when significant changes to the financial system came into force.  
This abolished the old council tax benefit system and asked all local councils 
to introduce a local council tax support scheme and took away 10% of the 
funding that used to be provided for the council tax benefits system.  The 
Council set up its own local council tax support scheme but it was recognised 

Page 10



 

 

that this scheme was less generous.  A hardship fund was set up in the sum 
of £65k per year at that point.  For the first three years there was an 
underspend in the fund and allocation to the fund was reduced to £30k per 
year until 2020 when the allocations slightly exceeded the budget.  At this 
point consultation took place and a new council tax reduction scheme was 
introduced.  This was a banded scheme and allocations undertaken differently 
which meant some people were allocated more and some allocated less as it 
was believed previously that people who had the greatest need were not 
getting the fairest allocation.    Due to the new scheme and hardship that 
some people may face, a hardship fund was introduced and an increase in 
budget from £30k up to £127k.  At this point the Council had not taken into 
account the pandemic and the impact on households.  In the current year’s 
projection £83k had been spent to the end of December 2020 with the 
projection for year end of £115k, although it was difficult to give a figure due to 
the pandemic.   The proposal was to increase the scheme significantly next 
year due to the increased council tax level and would be set at around £250k, 
but if people fit the criteria then the Council wouldn’t stop allocating just 
because the budget level had been reached. 
 
How well was the hardship fund promoted and would it be highlighted 
when the council tax increase was announced. 
 
The Council Tax team and people who calculate the council tax reduction 
scheme would be able to see who was struggling and at this point customers 
would be made aware of the hardship scheme and it would then be 
appropriate for an application to come forward. 
 
When would Single Status provisions end?  
 
Single Status had been ongoing for some time and was within the budget 
papers as a one off pot of money to the value of £8.9m, showing no reduction 
through to the end of the service and financial planning period.  This had been 
reduced by £3m from £11.9m due to the exceptional circumstances at the end 
of the last financial year and the start of the pandemic.  The pot of money was 
there to fund items such as back pay as agreed, legal costs or other one-off 
costs but not to fund the ongoing cost of the implementation of a new set of 
payscales.    The implementation of single status had been budgeted from 
April 2022 with £1.2m to fund the increase that was expected to arise from the 
settlement.  There were no exact figures but it was an allowance that could be 
worked within to agree a new set of payscales.  The staff undertaking the 
single status work were currently helping with the response to the pandemic 
and supporting the Senior Management Team so there would be a direct 
consequence to the implementation of single status and it was difficult to say 
exactly when single status would be implemented, but the £8.9m is budgeted 
through until 2023/24.  
 
How would this scheme work for people who had left Council 
employment or who had passed away, with regard to statutory limitation 
and the Unions.    
 

Page 11



 

 

A lot of restructures had since taken place and the average cost was likely to 
be lower due to further restructures and the re-writing of job descriptions.  The 
Council had sought to make sure there were no issues within the organisation 
going forward.  There were differences between the legal and policy position 
and there may also be local agreements with unions which needed to be 
looked at before an answer could be provided.  It was agreed that this would 
be looked into and a written response circulated to Members.  As the process 
of single status had not yet finished the Council was not in a position to say 
what would happen with the funding pot and no assumptions could be made 
at this time.   
 
How many employees were affected by single status.  Members 
requested a detailed report on the position of single status and where 
the Council currently stood and the likelihood of any benefit, what, if any 
money could be utilised to the benefit of the Council, and an indication 
of the level of funding was needed. 
 
This could be incorporated into the work programme for future meetings 
 
A manufacturer had just made an announcement about a new model for 
repairing potholes which reduces the time for doing one by 50% and 
reduces the costs by 50%.   
 
The position had been checked with the Highways Team who were aware of 
the announcement and it was something they are looking at with the Council’s 
Contractor, Balfour Beatty.    
 
A Member commented that central government had not forced local 
councils to raise Council tax by 4.99%, however, there was an 
expectation that they would do so. A Member queried if the adult social 
care precept would be taken over a two year period. 
 
The Government had said that councils could phase in the increase in the 
adult social care part of the council tax increase, but in all Government figures 
they had assumed an increase of 4.99%.  This meant that if the council did 
not increase council tax by 4.99% there would be a shortfall in funding. 
 
The Council had looked for savings for 11 years and by the end of the year 
£126.4m savings had been found.  It was increasingly difficult to come up with 
proposals and officers worked with Cabinet and all proposals had been 
accepted except for one proposal to cut the public health budget which was 
not appropriate at this time.  
 
A discussion was held regarding the use of reserves and if it was appropriate 
to use them during the pandemic. Some Members considered that it was not 
appropriate to use reserves, as they were a one off budget, while others 
considered that they should be used to lower the increase in council tax.  
 
Upon being put to the vote it was: 
 

Page 12



 

 

RESOLVED – that the Democratic and Scrutiny Services Officer would 
work with the Chair and other Members of the Committee to formulate a 
response to Cabinet based upon the comments made during the 
meeting which would be included in the final version of the Service & 
Financial Planning report to be considered at Cabinet on 18 February 
2021 and at full Council on 4 March 2021. 
 
The meeting ended at 7.01 pm 

 
Chairman:   

 
Date: 

 
Wednesday, 8 September 2021 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



TELFORD & WREKIN COUNCIL 
 
BUSINESS & FINANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 8 September 2021 
 
REVIEW OF TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
REPORT OF ANTHEA LOWE – ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR: POLICY & 
GOVERNANCE 

 
PART A) – SUMMARY REPORT 
 
1. SUMMARY OF MAIN PROPOSALS 
 
For the Business & Finance Scrutiny Committee to review its Terms of 
Reference attached at Appendix 1. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Committee review and agree the amended Terms of 

Reference set out at Appendix 1. 

 
3. SUMMARY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
 

COMMUNITY IMPACT Do these proposals contribute to specific 
Priority Plan objective(s)? 

Yes The Committee is part of the Council’s 
decision making framework and 
therefore contributes to all of the 
Council’s priorities. 

Will the proposals impact on specific groups of 
people? 

No  

TARGET 
COMPLETION/DELIVERY 
DATE 

If the Committee recommends any changes to 
the Terms of Reference; they will proceed to 
Council Constitution Committee and then, if 
approved, onto full Council at the earliest 
opportunity.  

FINANCIAL/VALUE FOR 
MONEY IMPACT 

Yes Scrutiny has a role in ensuring that local 
government is effective and accountable. 
This includes undertaking reviews and 
challenging and monitoring performance. 
Support for the committee and the work 
programme are managed within existing 
resources. The financial implications of any 
recommendations made by Scrutiny should 
be considered as part of the specific reports 
making those recommendations. 
 
TAS 21/7/21 

LEGAL ISSUES Yes  The Constitution requires that the Terms 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



of Reference be reviewed on an annual 
basis.  The Council is required to 
comply with the Constitution. This report 
demonstrates compliance with this 
requirement. (05.08.21 IR) 

OTHER IMPACTS, RISKS 
& OPPORTUNITIES 

Yes There are no other specific impacts 
arising from this report. 

IMPACT ON SPECIFIC 
WARDS 

Yes Borough-wide impact 

 
PART B) – ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
4. INFORMATION 
 
4.1 At the Annual Meeting on 29 April 2021, Full Council delegated 

authority to each Committee to review its own Terms of Reference.  
 
4.2 There is one minor change suggested to the Terms of Reference 

(shown in red on Appendix 1) simply to provide clarity around the 
process for appointment of a Chair for the Committee.  

 
5. PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
5.1 Council – 14 July 2016, 21 May 2020, and 29 April 2021. 
   
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Constitution – www.telford.gov.uk/constitution  
 
Report prepared by Kieran Robinson, Senior Democracy Officer 
(Scrutiny), kieran.robinson@telford.gov.uk, 01952 382061 

Page 16

http://www.telford.gov.uk/constitution


Appendix 1 

BUSINESS & FINANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TERMS OF 
REFERENCE 
 
Membership 
 
1. The group will be made up of elected members of the Scrutiny Assembly, as 

appointed at Annual Council in line with the political balance of the Council.   
 

2. The Committee may include Co-opted scrutiny members but they must not 
exceed 50% of the number of elected members.  

 
3. In addition to standing co-optees, the Committee may appoint additional co-

optees for one-off reviews to supplement the skills, knowledge and experience of 
members of the Committee on that particular issue (subject to the rule on total 
number of co-optees above). 

 
4. The Chair is appointed at the Annual General Meeting of full Council.  A Vice-

Chair may be appointed by majority decision of the Committee 
 

5. The quorum for a meeting is 3 elected members. 
 
Functions  
 
6. The Committee will be the main mechanism by which Scrutiny members will 

scrutinise and monitor issues relating to the following key areas:   
 
 Service & Financial Planning including Budget and Income Generation, 

Property Investment Portfolio, Property Management and Revenues 
 Commercial Projects  
 Economic development projects including broadband 
 Skills and employability  
 Support to business and growth sectors  
 Business investment 
 Attracting funding for Telford & Wrekin 
 Partnerships 
 West Midlands Combined Authority 
 Local Enterprise Partnership 
 Visitor Economy including tourism operation and development 
 Pride Programme 
 Workforce issues 
 HCA Land Deal 
 Local Plan (Jointly with Environment Scrutiny Committee) 
 

 
7. The Committee will set its own work programme.  The following points may be 

taken into consideration when considering the work programme each year: 
 

 areas where significant change is proposed and the potential impacts 
 performance in areas where significant change has been implemented; 
 areas of financial overspend; 

Page 17



Appendix 1 

 areas receiving a high level of budgetary commitment; 
 areas where there is a high level of user dissatisfaction; 
 reports and action plans produced/agreed with external partners; 
 areas that are key issues for the public or have become a public interest issue 

covered in the media. 
 

8. The Committee will consider matters referred by the Scrutiny Management Board, 
and will exercise discretion as to whether a suggestion falls within the remit of the 
Committee to scrutinise.  

 
Meeting Administration and Proceedings 
 
9. The Committee procedure rules as set out in the Council’s Constitution apply to 

this Committee.   
 

10. The meetings will follow the principles of scrutiny - ie no party whip will be applied 
and a constructive, evidence based approach will be used.  
 

11. If the Chair and Vice Chair (if appointed) are unable to attend a meeting the 
members present will elect a Chair for the meeting.  

 
12. All Scrutiny Committee meetings will be held in public, unless exempt information 

is being considered or discussed.  Scrutiny Committees may appoint sub-groups 
to carry out investigative work as part of a review and these sub-groups may hold 
informal meetings but will report back their findings to the Scrutiny Committee.  
 

13. The meetings will be administered by Scrutiny Services and Democratic 
Services.  Meetings will be held regularly and dates will be agreed by the 
members of the Committee at the start of each municipal year.  Members of the 
Committee may call additional meetings as required to follow up concerns 
identified in their scheduled meetings or sub-sets of members may form working 
groups that meet outside the scheduled meetings to investigate specific issues. 

 
14. Relevant Cabinet Members, Executive Directors, Directors and Service Delivery 

Managers will attend the Committee at the request of the Chair. Representatives 
from partner organisations may be invited to attend. 

 
Sensitive and Confidential Information  
 
15. From time to time members may become privy to information of a confidential 

nature.  If this happens, members must maintain this confidence.  Members are 
unable to request personal/confidential information from Officers about an 
individual or family. 

 
Information obtained as a result of membership of the Committee is sensitive and 
should be treated as being confidential by members. 

Page 18



Business & Finance Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme 2021/2022 

 

 

Issue / Topic Brief description of topic Suggested by Target 
Date 

Service Area SMT Feedback 

Budget Scrutiny Consultation on draft budget & 
policy framework 
proposals published by the Leader 
and any alternative proposals 
developed by opposition groups 

Constitutional 
function 
 
 
 

January 
2022 

Finance & 
Human 
Resources  

 

Redevelopment of 
the New Towns 

    It is recommended that 
this is removed from the 
work programme given 
the size of the work 
programme, taking into 
account the budget 
setting period. 

The work of the 
Commercial Services 
Department 

To understand the impact that this 
has on income generation 
(especially how this has increased over the past 
5 or 10 years). 

Carried forward 
from 2020/21 

 Policy, Customer 
and 
Commercial 
Services 

 

Housing Investment 
Programme 

To review and consider the 
proposals for the Housing 
Investment Programme 

Carried forward 
from 2020/21 

November 
2021 

Housing  This was considered by 
the committee in 
Autumn 2020.  Suggest 
annual update. 

Commercial Services  Carried forward 
from 2020/21 

 Policy, Customer 
and 
Commercial 
Services 

This duplicates the item 
earlier in the work 
programme. 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 5



Business & Finance Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme 2021/2022 

 

 

Procurement update To understand the changes to 
legislation which will allow 
authorities greater say on locality of 
suppliers and to review the value 
for money arising out of the social 
value element of contracts that the 
Council may enter into 
 
Social Value in procurement. What do we 
currently do? Could we have a stronger 
corporate approach? 

Carried forward 
from 2020/21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
New – From 
Cabinet Member 
 
 
 

 Procurement  

Social Enterprise Investments in social enterprise for local 
groups 

New – From Co-
optee 

 Community 
Participation  

Supporting social 
enterprise forms part of 
the Business Support 
programme which is 
elsewhere within this 
work programme. 

LEP Annual Review New – From SMT  LEP  

Financial Monitoring Mid-Year financial monitoring update New – From SMT October 
2021 

Finance  

Pride in Our High 
Streets / High Street 
Re-opening 

Post-covid Pride in our High Streets and High 
streets re-opening 

New – From SMT After June 
2021 

Policy, Customer 
and 
Commercial 
Services 
Neighbourhood 
& 
Enforcement 
Services 

It is recommended that, 
if SMB wish to pursue 
this, it is carried out in 
the 3 or 4 quarter of the 
year given the High 
Streets are only just 
reopening following 
lockdown. 

P
age 20



Business & Finance Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme 2021/2022 

 

 

Business Support 
Programme 

 New – From SMT    

 
Yellow – new suggestions for 2021/22 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes of the Previous Meeting - 18 January 2021

	4 Terms of Reference
	Appendix 1 - Business & Finance Terms of Reference 2021 2022

	5 Work Programme 2021/22

